
Third United Nations Conference on the Law of the Sea 
 

1973-1982 
Concluded at Montego Bay, Jamaica on 10 December 1982 

 
 

Document:- 
A/CONF.62/C.3/SR.5

 
 

Summary records of meetings of the Third Committee 
5th meeting 

 
Extract from the Official Records of the Third United Nations Conference on the Law of  

the Sea, Volume II (Summary Records of Meetings of the First, Second and Third Committees, 
Second Session) 

 

 

 

 

 

Copyright © United Nations 
2009 



5th meeting-17 July 1974 323

5th meeting
Wednesday, 17 July 1974, at 10.40 a.m.

Chairman: Mr. A. YANK.OV (Bulgaria).

Preservation of the marine environment (continued)
[Agenda item 12]

1. Mr. HARRISON (United Nations Educational, Scientific
and Cultural Organization) said that the law of the sea must be
formulated in the context of human culture, human aspirations
and, in particular, the natural environment, and that UNESCO
was in a unique position to provide assistance, advice or infor-
mation about the marine environment, either at the request of
interested Member States or through co-operative programmes
and to help Member States in the training and education of
their own specialists.
2. The environment, including the marine environment, was
an extremely complex and dynamic system that responded to
physical, chemical, biological and geological processes. In the
past 30 years intensive scientific research had been carried out
on the basic framework of those processes and UNESCO had
played a significant part in that research. The environment was
the result of the sum total of basic processes and their interac-
tions, whose intensity varied with time and place. Hence de-
tailed local studies were often needed to provide an under-
standing of specific environmental problems. In addition, the
effect of any human activity on the environment was to change
it, sometimes drastically and suddenly, but more often gradu-
ally, though in ways that could have equally severe cumulative
effects. Thus the use of the sea must be carefully planned,
controlled and monitored.
3. The biological and mineral resources of the sea and the
structure of the sea-bed were the result of long-term natural
processes. If that circumstance was ignored, the law of the sea
would be weaker and more difficult to implement.
4. In the formulation of the law of the sea cultural considera-
tions had to be taken into account, and they in turn were
influenced by the nature of the environment. The law of the sea
must serve the ethical goals of human survival, enhancement of
the quality of life for the individual and the evolution of cul-
ture. At the same time, it must be sufficiently flexible to recog-
nize the inevitable changes in the environment that were
brought about by natural causes.
5. UNESCO performed an essential function in dissemi-
nating information and in arranging international co-operation
with respect to marine sciences, and could provide expertise in
scientific questions concerning the marine environment. In its
capacity as an educational, scientific and cultural organization,
UNESCO could also provide assistance with respect to the
social and cultural consequences of legal proposals.
6. In summary, UNESCO's programmes on the marine envi-
ronment were related to its other scientific co-operation pro-
grammes. It helped countries develop their over-all science
policies and plans, in which marine sciences played an im-
portant part. It also had programmes in education and training
and a major programme dealing with the impact on society of
scientific and technological progress and, conversely, the effects
of society on science and technology. Finally, it was concerned
with the quality of life, cultural and social development and
human rights, all of which must be taken into account by the
law of the sea if it was to be effective.
7. Mr. DELIN (Sweden) said that his delegation considered it
extremely important that the Conference should adopt positive
decisions regarding the protection of the marine environment.
In that respect, it fully shared the opinion expressed by Mr.
Strong, Executive Director of the United Nations Environment

Programme (UNEP), in his statement at the 31st plenary
meeting.
8. In its view, the best way for the Conference to fulfil its task
would be to agree on a convention containing basic principles
and rules on the obligations of States to preserve the marine
environment. It would thus be left to competent international
organizations such as UNEP and the Inter-Governmental Mar-
itime Consultative Organization (IMCO) to elaborate detailed
provisions.
9. With respect to the texts submitted to the Committee on
the Peaceful Uses of the Sea-Bed and the Ocean Floor beyond
the Limits of National Jurisdiction, his delegation accepted the
draft article on basic obligations and also supported, in prin-
ciple, the article on particular obligations, with some reserva-
tions on certain details.
10. In connexion with the particular obligations he noted that
the draft articles submitted to the sea-bed Committee fre-
quently used the word "standards". His delegation would be
reluctant to use that term if it meant, for instance, maximum
allowed levels of pollution, for it was impossible to establish
such maximum levels for large areas, owing to the varying
capacity of the sea water to break down different materials. If,
on the other hand, it was agreed that the term "standards" had
the meaning of "regulations" or "rules and acting norms", he
would consider it acceptable.
11. He could also accept the draft article concerning the
transfer of damage or hazard from one area to another and the
article on global and regional co-operation.
12. The draft article on monitoring should be supplemented
by a provision to the effect that a coastal State must not nor-
mally refuse permission to carry out within its territorial sea
observations and measurements provided for in the article.
13. With regard to land-based sources of marine pollution, he
supported alternative A appearing in volume I, page 93 of
document A/9021 and Corr. 1 and 3. On the question of stand-
ards for sea-bed sources of pollution, he favoured provisions
essentially in conformity with alternative B, appearing on
page 94. Finally, as far as standards for vessel-source pollution
were concerned, he would support a text stipulating that States
should, through the appropriate international organization,
establish international standards for preventing vessel-source
pollution, including special standards for areas the ecological
character of which required stricter regulations.
14. With regard to the competence of States to establish
standards for the protection of the marine environment in their
coastal waters, his delegation understood the desire of coastal
States to protect the marine environment by unilateral stand-
ards. On the other hand, it could also well understand the
desire of nations which had large merchant fleets that the regu-
lations affecting shipping should be internationally agreed
upon in the same way as safety regulations and rules for navi-
gation. A reasonable compromise might be the inclusion in the
convention of a provision to the effect that "special areas"
might be established if certain oceanographic and ecological
conditions existed in certain parts of the sea, a concept which
had already been accepted in the International Convention for
the Prevention of Pollution from Ships of 1973. In that case,
the coastal State which considered that its situation justified
the establishment of a special area could notify a competent
international organization thereof and submit draft special
rules to be applied in that area. That international organization



324 Second Session—Third Committee

could then consider whether a special area could be established
in accordance with the convention, and in that case, examine
proposed rules and approve them before their entry into force.
However, proposed regulations regarding dumping, naviga-
tion, dangerous cargoes and so forth which were connected
with the operation of ships could enter into force as soon as the
competent organization had approved the establishment of the
special area.
15. As to enforcement measures, his delegation considered
that in addition to the flag State, both the coastal State and the
port State should be entitled to take action against ships which
had violated internationally approved environmental regula-
tions.
16. With regard to liability and compensation, it was essential
to emphasize the special character of the damage in question.
Damage to the marine environment in many cases did not
affect any specific person. Thus it could be said that pollution
of the high seas was damaging to mankind as a whole. It was
often very difficult to prove a causal relationship between a
certain activity and the resulting damage and to estimate the
damage in terms of money. For those reasons it was obvious
that the traditional doctrine of compensation for damages
could not be applied in solving satisfactorily questions con-
cerning compensation for damages to the marine environment,
a matter which should be studied in more detail than was
possible in the Committee.
17. The convention could stipulate that States should adopt
national legislation which would be in consonance with the
convention's basic principles. If a State did not observe that or
ensure that the regulations were complied with, it would be
liable for damage from pollution caused to areas under the
jurisdiction of another State. Furthermore, it should be pro-
vided that a foreign citizen in a contracting State would have
the same legal remedies and the same right to compensation as
a citizen of that State, even if the damage had occurred outside
its territory. Finally, the convention should specify that States
had an obligation to develop international law regarding lia-
bility and compensation for marine pollution within and
beyond the limits of national jurisdiction. A possible future
solution might be the establishment of an international fund
for compensation for damage.
18. As his delegation considered it of fundamental impor-
tance that the Conference should reach an agreement on the
rules concerning the protection of the marine environment, it
would be ready to show flexibility in order to contribute to a
common solution.
19. Mr. KHARAS (Pakistan), noting that the sea constituted
an important part of the human environment, observed that
environmental problems on land had their origin in the poor
economic and social conditions from which developing coun-
tries suffered and that those countries, with their limited re-
sources, were looking to the immense resources of the ocean to
overcome those difficulties. Modern technological advances
had made it possible to take advantage of those resources but
the selfish desire to exploit them quickly had given rise to
pollution of the sea and irreversible damage to its living re-
sources.
20. The merchant fleets of the world had increased consider-
ably in number and size of ships, and the risk of accidents and
pollution had dramatically increased. That, along with land-
based sources of marine pollution, which were the major
sources, opened up alarming prospects. The protection of the
marine environment had become a matter of great urgency and
required solutions at both the national and the international
levels.
21. His delegation fully supported the Declaration of Santo
Domingo of 1972,' which recognized the duty of every State to

refrain from performing acts which might pollute the sea and
the sea-bed, either inside or outside its respective jurisdiction.
It also fully agreed with the Declaration of the Organization of
African Unity (A/CONF.62/33) which gave every State the
right to manage its resources and imposed the obligation to
prevent and control pollution of the marine environment. It
also agreed with the principles concerning the rights and duties
of States in respect of the environment, including the marine
environment contained in the Declaration adopted at Stock-
holm in 1972.2

22. It was recognized that all States had the sovereign right to
explore and exploit the living and non-living resources in their
territorial waters and it was expected that under the new con-
vention that right would be extended to the so-called economic
zone, which would entail the jurisdiction of the coastal State
with respect to the preservation of the marine environment in
that zone. For that purpose, his delegation felt that although
international standards should be drawn up, their adoption
and enforcement should be the responsibility of coastal States
in the areas under their national jurisdiction, having regard to
such factors as the technological capability and economic re-
sources of the States concerned, as well as ecological and geo-
graphical conditions.
23. The International Sea-Bed Authority to be established
under the future convention should be responsible for the pre-
vention of pollution and the preservation of the marine envi-
ronment in the international area and should also provide the
necessary technical assistance to coastal States for the adapta-
cion and enforcement of international standards in areas within
their jurisdiction.
24. His delegation fully subscribed to the view that there were
a number of gaps in the existing conventions for the prevention
of marine pollution and that those gaps must be filled. He
commended IMCO for its role in supervising and regulating
the application of measures for the avoidance of accidents to
ships and the prevention of pollution and said he was confident
that by the end of the current decade IMCO, with the active co-
operation of Governments and other international bodies,
would be able to eliminate pollution caused by intentional oil
discharges in the seas.
25. Pakistan, whose only major port was Karachi, did not
know the exact magnitude of its pollution problem. However,
studies and research carried out during the previous 10 years
near its coasts had revealed a rapid decline in the shrimp popu-
lation, which was an important source of Pakistan's foreign
exchange. His Government was conscious of that problem and
was taking appropriate measures, but lacked adequate infor-
mation about the state of its coastal waters; it needed to im-
prove its existing fragmentary knowledge of the sources of
pollution, the nature of pollutants entering the sea, and so
forth. Since other developing countries were perhaps in the
same situation, there was need for a system to monitor such
information on a regional and global basis, and he was happy
to learn that the United Nations Environment Programme had
already initiated activities in that area. He hoped that under the
new convention the developing countries would be provided
with all the necessary data and technology to enable them to
combat marine pollution in an effective manner. In that regard,
appropriate training of the personnel of the developing coun-
tries was equally important.
26. Mr. HASSAN (Sudan) said that his delegation had from
the beginning taken an active part in the work of the sea-bed
Committee and of the United Nations Conference on the
Human Environment, and that the Committee's task now was
to make effective the principles and recommendations relating
to the marine environment which had been formulated at that
Conference, as part of the process of the progressive develop-
ment of the law of the sea.

1 Official Records of the General Assembly, Twenty-seventh Session,
Supplement No. 21 and corrigendum, annex I, sect. 2.

2 Report of the United Nations Conference on the Human Environ-
ment (United Nations publication, Sales No. E.73.II.A. 14), chap. I.



5th meeting—17 July 1974 325

27. The effective contribution of the developing countries to
the Stockholm Conference had shattered the myth, prevalent
prior to the Conference, that the developing countries would
take a lukewarm attitude towards environment issues and re-
gard them as the exclusive concern of the rich countries which
monopolized the sea and the oceans. The developing countries,
while accepting their share of responsibilities for preserving
and enhancing the marine environment, were committed to
development and to improvement of the welfare of their peo-
ples. Those two objectives were not necessarily opposed to one
another, but were in fact perfectly compatible. The sovereignty
of a State over its natural resources in the sea or land area
within its jurisdiction was one of the rights solemnly declared
in the Charter. The prevention of marine pollution and the
preservation of the equilibrium of the marine environment
were entirely compatible with the goals of development.
28. His country intended to assume the responsibilities and
the duties necessary to prevent destruction of its biological
resources, and was devoting considerable resources to that end,
since the Red Sea, which was a closed sea, was one of the most
important waterways for tanker and container traffic and its
coasts were thus exposed more than any other marine area to
oil spillage, intentional or unintentional. Using the most
modern achievements of science and technology, his country
intended to exploit the mineral resources in the sea-bed of its
jurisdictional waters, exercising its sovereignty over its natural
resources in conformity with its declared objectives of develop-
ment and welfare. In so doing, it would fulfil its obligation not
to pollute the waters, and would observe pertinent national or
international regulations.
29. Ecological concerns had prompted his country, at the
twenty-seventh session of the General Assembly, to submit
resolution 3000 (XXVII) concerning measures for enhancing
the human environment, a resolution which had been accepted
without a dissenting vote and which was one of the most
quoted General Assembly resolutions in its field. In essence, it
called for ensuring a compatible relationship between environ-
mental programmes and the application of modern science and
technology.
30. His delegation was optimistic, and believed that, with the
co-operation of all, an agreement could be reached.
31. Mr. NITTI (Italy) said that pollution problems affected
all countries equally, and that a solution should be sought
which met the interests and concerns of all States. He wished to
set forth briefly the principles and elements on which his dele-
gation's position was based. First, regulations and standards
concerning the prevention of pollution from ships should be
internationally agreed upon within the framework of appro-
priate international organizations, particularly IMCO. Sec-
ondly, enforcement of such regulations should continue to be
within the competence of the flag State, in particular with
regard to vessel design, construction and equipment. In that
connexion, it had been argued that a void was created when the
flag State could not or would not enforce its own rules. How-
ever, that concern was not necessarily connected with the ques-
tion of the source of the regulations, since violations or lack of
enforcement of legal rules were perfectly possible whatever the
source. Thirdly, his delegation supported international recog-
nition of the notion of "special areas" which, because of their
particular characteristics, needed special protection against the
danger of pollution. The Mediterranean had been recognized
as a special area in the 1973 International Convention for the
Prevention of Pollution from Ships. The international ap-
proach to that question was a valid one, since States in special
areas could, for their part, conclude regional and subregional
agreements consistent with the guiding principles and rules
adopted at the international level. However, such an approach
was not always wholly satisfactory since, for example, the 1973
Convention did not extend to the Mediterranean the prohibi-
tion against discharges of certain harmful substances which it

provided for in relation to other areas. Nevertheless, his delega-
tion expressed confidence that such prohibition would ulti-
mately be extended to the Mediterranean; that would justify its
conviction as to the opportunity for an approach of an interna-
tional character which Italy had always supported. Fourthly,
measures carried out by States with regard to land-based pollu-
tion should take into account standards which were elaborated
at the international level, and possibly also at the regional level.
32. Mr. ODA (Japan) said that the international community,
having realized that it was necessary to preserve the marine
environment from further deterioration, had now also become
aware of the necessity for a world-wide agreement on the con-
trol of marine pollution. The major type of marine pollution
was land-based, and that type included the discharge into the
sea of industrial and agricultural wastes and of domestic sew-
age. Although such pollution should be controlled through
laws and administrative action applied by each nation, interna-
tional law could not be indifferent to its adverse effects. Every
nation was bound to prevent pollution which could affect the
marine areas beyond its jurisdiction and prejudice the legiti-
mate interests of other nations. That principle had been
reflected in the Declaration of the United Nations Conference
on the Human Environment, which had also provided that
States, through competent international organizations, should
establish environmental requirements to serve as a basis for the
measures which they elaborated.
33. Exploration and exploitation of the sea-bed did not cause
significant pollution problems when properly conducted and
controlled. However, because of the ever-increasing number of
oil and gas drillings, it was inevitable that risks of pollution
would increase. The legal implications of such pollution were
similar to those of land-based pollution. In that regard, his
delegation believed that appropriate international organiza-
tions such as IMCO or the proposed Sea-Bed Authority should
establish minimum standards for the prevention of that type of
pollution within coastal sea-bed areas. Such standards should
include, inter alia, design strength, seaworthiness and stability
of offshore installations. In addition, it fell within the compe-
tence of coastal States to require stricter standards for the
exploitation of marine resources in their coastal areas.
34. It also had to be recognized that land-based dumping into
the ocean of wastes, including radioactive materials and highly
toxic chemical materials, would continue to increase. His dele-
gation therefore hoped that, as soon as possible, a large
number of countries would become parties to the 1972 London
Convention on the Prevention of Marine Pollution by
Dumping of Wastes and Other Matter, which prohibited en-
tirely the dumping of the most dangerous wastes and made the
dumping of other wastes subject to a regulatory system. The
possibility also had to be taken into account that natural condi-
tions in certain areas required stricter rules to control dumping,
which, if approved by any competent international organiza-
tion such as IMCO, would be applicable to the vessels of any
nation.
35. The most significant source of ship-borne pollution was
the discharge of oil or oil mixtures into the sea. The Interna-
tional Convention for the Prevention of Pollution of the Sea by
Oil, concluded in London in 1954, had not resulted in the
complete elimination of intentional discharges of those sub-
stances. In 1969, therefore, IMCO had approved extensive
amendments which, once they entered into force, should lead
to the attainment of that goal. Moreover, in 1973 IMCO had
adopted the International Convention for the Prevention of
Pollution from Ships which took into account practically all
pollutants. However, his delegation believed that other re-
gional arrangements, setting much stricter standards for the
discharge or dumping of harmful pollutants in certain ecologi-
cally or biologically vulnerable areas, would be required.
36. The adoption of standards posed the problem of ensuring
their enforcement. The question had often been raised whether



326 Second Session—Third Committee

the flag-State approach constituted a feasible and proper solu-
tion to that problem. His delegation believed that in resolving
the conflict between the traditional freedom of navigation, on
the one hand, and the exercise of enforcement control by
coastal States, on the other, the traditional flag-State principle
should serve as a basis for enforcing pollution control stand-
ards. However, in order to maintain that principle, the flag
State should, first, be responsible for compliance by its vessels
with international standards for ship design, equipment, con-
struction and manning, as well as those relating to the dumping
and discharge of pollutants. Secondly, inspection by competent
authorities when ships entered port would be an effective mea-
sure to prevent any violation of those international standards.
The flag State would i^se the report prepared by such authori-
ties in taking any necessary administrative or judicial measures
against vessels which had violated the standards. Thirdly, in
view of the fact that in many cases it was not the flag State
which suffered most, it would be appropriate to give certain
enforcement powers to the coastal State in cases where a ship
had discharged or dumped pollutants in areas close to its coast.
In that regard, two overriding interests had to be borne in
mind. On the one hand, the marine environment had to be
effectively and adequately protected against pollution, and for
that purpose the coastal State was perhaps in the best position
to enforce the relevant regulations; on the other hand, interven-
tion by the coastal State must not damage the very broad
interest of the international community in the freedom of mari-
time traffic.
37. Mr. MINTZ (Israel) said his country had a twofold in-
terest as a coastal State to protect its shores and seas from
pollution and as a shipping State interested in shipborne trade.
His delegation therefore considered that the distinction be-
tween a coastal State and a maritime nation was a somewhat
artificial one, especially when account was taken of the ten-
dency of States to develop their own shipping industry. To
reconcile those two interests, practical questions were to be
posed: how to induce the shipping industry to prevent pollu-
tion and what Governments could do to that end.
38. The first matter to consider was appropriate legislation.
He reported that Israel had enacted new anti-pollution legisla-
tion which substantially increased penalties for discharge of oil
into the sea and considered that the Conference would be
taking a constructive step by adopting a resolution calling
upon all States to review and if necessary to improve their
legislation on the subject.
39. A second practical matter was that of ensuring quick
prosecution of those responsible. The Israeli Ministry of Trans-
port, which was vested with the task, had recently filed nu-
merous prosecutions against owners and masters of vessels
accused of causing pollution, and had applied for early hear-
ings.
40. A third matter was that of production of evidence of
witnesses who were not in the country, as to offences com-
mitted abroad. Israel was considering the possibility of intro-
ducing in Parliament a bill which would allow the courts to
accept documentary evidence submitted by proper foreign au-
thorities as to pollution offences committed by Israeli ships in
the vicinity of their coasts. Israel would expect other Govern-
ments, on a reciprocal basis, to prosecute their ships upon
receipt of similar evidence in writing from Israeli authorities as
to pollution violations committed by their ships in the vicinity
of Israeli coasts. That would facilitate efficient prosecution by
the flag State, as suggested by the previous speaker, the repre-
sentative of Japan.
41. Those matters could also be the subject of resolutions by
the Conference, which might entrust an international organiza-
tion such as IMCO, which had considerable experience in the
subject, with the task of elaborating rules to facilitate prosecu-
tion of offenders. Furthermore, IMCO could be entrusted with
considering the proposal made by the Norwegian delegation at

the 25th plenary meeting whereby States would set up a man-
datory insurance fund to cover pollution damage caused by
ships passing through the waters of a foreign State, thus re-
lieving the latter and its nationals of the need to prove fault,
negligence and liability by the polluting vessel and also of the
cumbersome need to sue in foreign courts. To that end it might
be possible to enlarge the scope of the International Conven-
tion on the Establishment of an International Fund for Com-
pensation for Oil Pollution Damage, signed at Brussels in 1971,
or to prepare an additional convention modelled upon it.

42. The 1973 International Convention for the Prevention of
Pollution from Ships would probably enter into force in 1977
and until that date States bordering upon seas defined as spe-
cial areas were to provide reception facilities for ships in their
ports. Governments represented at the Conference could not
raise claims against shipowners unless they carried out obliga-
tions devolving upon themselves. Israel was making arrange-
ments to prepare such facilities within the time-limit set by the
Convention. It hoped the same attitude would be taken by all
States concerned. A Conference resolution in the matter would
also be constructive.

43. He referred to the statement of the Finnish delegation at
the preceding meeting as to the provisions of the 1974 Helsinki
Convention on the Protection of the Marine Environment of
the Baltic Sea Area (see A/CONF.62/C.3/L.1) and considered
the Helsinki arrangements could serve as guidance in other
special areas such as the Mediterranean, to be worked out by
experts. A first step in that direction had been the FAO
meeting at Rome in February 1974 of Mediterranean States on
the Protection of Living Resources and Fisheries from Pollu-
tion in the Mediterranean and the Inter-Parliamentary Confer-
ence of Coastal States on the Control of Pollution in the Medi-
terranean, the latter held in April 1974. Just as Israel had
co-operated with other Mediterranean States in those two
meetings, in order to preserve the Mediterranean marine envi-
ronment, so it was willing to co-operate on all matters arising
out of the 1973 Convention.

44. Mr. MANSFIELD (New Zealand) said that his country's
isolation from the rest of the world protected it against certain
forms of marine pollution. It was also true that the volume of
shipping, which might give rise to pollution of its coasts, was
relatively small. However, New Zealand had a very long coast-
line, a large continental margin, frequently adverse weather
conditions and dangerous straits—factors which made the
country particularly vulnerable to pollution, especially by oil
from snipping. For that reason, it would seek recognition of
the right of a coastal State to apply anti-pollution laws to all
shipping in a broad zone of its adjacent sea. That position in no
way implied that the establishment of internationally agreed
standards for the control of vessel-source pollution was not
important. On the contrary, such standards were essential for
the development of an integrated approach to the preservation
of the marine environment. At the same time, it was essential
that, within the area under their jurisdiction—he had in mind
the economic zone—coastal States should retain the right to
enforce international standards in respect of pollution from
shipping and, where necessary, to apply reasonable additional
or supplementary rules.

45. New Zealand's economy was heavily dependent on mari-
time trade and hence on international navigation. It would
therefore resist any proposal which, in its view, might interrupt
or hinder the flow of shipping. The power of the coastal State
should be of a residual character only. His delegation was
ready to discuss the manner and circumstances in which that
power might reasonably by exercised, with a view to striking a
satisfactory balance between the interest of the coastal State in
protecting its marine environment and the interest of both the
coastal and the flag State in ensuring the continued flow of
international shipping.



5th meeting—17 July 1974 327

46. The same balance must be struck with regard to enforcing
the standards for vessel-source pollution. Clearly, it was for the
flag State to ensure that the applicable regulations were en-
fqrced. From the coastal State's point of view, however, flag-
State jurisdiction alone could not be a sufficient guarantee of
compliance with standards.
47. In order to avoid difficulties in obtaining prompt enforce-
ment action by States which in many cases might be situated a
great distance from the place where the infringement had oc-
curred, many countries had recognized the suitability of a
sharing of enforcement action between the flag State and the
coastal State.

48. The area in which the coastal State should have the right
to establish its own supplementary standards and to take en-
forcement action against infringements was the so-called eco-
nomic zone or patrimonial sea. Within its zone of jurisdiction,
the coastal State should have both rights and obligations. It
would, in fact, have a responsibility for the rational exploita-
tion of the zonal resources and, for that reason, recognition
must also be given to jurisdiction in respect of the preservation
of the environment which supported those resources. He there-
fore urged the Committee to bear in mind the essential rela-
tionship between the exploitation of the resources of the eco-
nomic zone and the prevention of pollution.
49. Mr. PAPAGEORGIOU (Greece) said that the Com-
mittee should bear in mind the conclusions reached by Sub-
Committee I I I of the sea-bed Committee with regard to basic
obligations to preserve the marine environment, particular ob-
ligations to prevent pollution of the marine environment,
global and regional co-operation, technical assistance, moni-
toring and standards, all of which should serve as a basis for
future negotiations, together with all the other relevant pro-
posals submitted to the Sub-Committee and any new pro-
posals that might be submitted in the Conference.
50. Turning to the organization of work, he submitted that
the Committee should proceed immediately to those issues on
which Sub-Committee III had not been able to prepare draft
articles, namely, those relating to a definition of marine pollu-
tion, responsibility and liability, enforcement measures, immu-
nities, freedom of the high seas, settlement of disputes, rela-
tionship to other treaties or conventions and international
institutions.
51. On the issue of standards, he reiterated his delegation's
view that they must be international, because only in that way
would it be possible to attain the goals of the convention. If, at
a later stage, a coastal State considered that those international
standards were inadequate to cope with a specific situation, it
could propose the adoption of additional standards through
amendment of the convention. As to the question of enforce-
ment measures, his delegation took the view that responsibility
should rest with the flag State. In any case, the port State and
the coastal State could be given the power to enforce the inter-
national standards in special cases of emergency or in cases
where the flag State could not and would not enforce the inter-
nationally agreed standards within a specific time. Further-
more, the Conference should take steps to include in the con-
vention special provisions on the enforcement of international
standards in the Mediterranean, the Baltic Sea, the Black Sea,
the Red Sea and the Gulfs area, which the 1973 IMCO Con-
vention had designated as special areas.
52. His delegation was of the opinion that, instead of giving
enforcement powers to coastal States, it would be more appro-
priate to define exactly the obligations of the flag State. Given
the importance of the item, stemming from its complexity and
its implications, his delegation intended to submit specific
proposals during the Committee's unofficial meetings.
53. Mr. FARINHA DA CONCEICAO (Portugal) stressed
the important role which the sea played in his country's eco-
nomic life. His delegation believed that international standards

with respect to the preservation of the marine environment
should be established, on the basis of which every coastal State
would have the right to lay down regulations guaranteeing its
effective control over operations of any kind carried out in the
maritime zone under its sovereignty and jurisdiction. His
country was in favour of full international co-operation to that
end, including concerted action by neighbouring coastal States
with respect to specific problems of a regional nature.
54. Because of its geographical situation, Portugal was more
likely to suffer from than to cause pollution. Nevertheless, it
accepted coastal State responsibility for damage to the marine
environment and to third States, while still claiming coastal
State rights when pollution was caused by another State,
whether coastal or land-locked.

55. International co-operation and technical assistance to
prevent pollution of the marine environment should be carried
out between States either directly or through the competent
international organizations, bearing in mind the technical and
financial possibilities of the parties concerned. A good system
of monitoring to prevent marine pollution, however, needed
resources and efforts which were not within the reach of coun-
tries relatively lacking in resources, and therefore it would also
be necessary to give technical and other assistance to the de-
veloping countries.

56. Concerning the draft articles worked out by Working
Group 2 of Sub-Committee I I I as set forth in volume 1 of the
1973 report of the sea-bed Committee his delegation felt that it
would be necessary in the unofficial meetings to improve cer-
tain of the variations, in order to find formulae that could be
more widely accepted and to reach an agreement.

57. Mr. KNOKE (Federal Republic of Germany) said that
the different sources of pollution should be dealt with in
different ways and should be subject to different legal arrange-
ments. His country was bordered by two seas, the North Sea
and the Baltic, both of which, because of ecological and other
circumstances, were in grave danger. It had therefore given
urgent priority to the task of combating marine pollution and
preserving the resources of the sea, and had taken an active
part in all international and regional efforts to that end. It was,
for example, on the initiative of the Government of the Federal
Republic of Germany that the first regional Agreement for Co-
operation in Dealing with Pollution of the North Sea by Oil,
known as the Bonn Agreement of 1969, had been concluded. In
its national legislation the Federal Republic had laid special
stress on two problems: first, the reduction and prevention of
land-based pollution, the most serious source, and, secondly,
the question of vessel-source pollution.
58. With regard to land-based pollution, his country whole-
heartedly supported recommendation 92 of the United Nations
Conference on the Human Environment,3 held in 1972 at
Stockholm, that Governments should speedily draw up effec-
tive national regulations to deal with land-based pollution,
concert those measures on a broad international basis within
the framework of the Third Conference on the Law of the Sea,
and co-ordinate their action at the regional level.
59. In his delegation's view, the Conference's main task with
respect to the preservation of the marine environment was to
improve and develop the international and regional conven-
tions on vessel-source pollution concluded in recent years. The
Federal Republic of Germany was a country with an extensive
export trade, two thirds of which was carried on by ships under
foreign flags, to a large extent via ports in neighbouring coun-
tries. It also had a considerable merchant marine of its own. It
could therefore not countenance unjustified interference in in-
ternational maritime trade or the freedom of navigation which
was the essential prerequisite of such trade and hence of con-
cern to the whole community of nations. A balance must be

'/bid, chap. II.



328 Second Session—Third Committee

sought between the requirements of measures to combat
marine pollution and those of unimpeded trade between the
continents.
60. Obviously, regulations required to deal with pollution
and provisions concerning areas with special ecological condi-
tions must be established by the community of nations through
a competent international organization. His delegation pledged
its support in that endeavour and was prepared to take into
account the interests of the coastal States bordering areas with
special ecological conditions.
61. With regard to enforcement measures, his country be-
lieved that the flag State was the one best able to ensure com-
pliance with anti-pollution regulations, since that was the State
which, by granting the right to fly its flag, decided whether a
ship might engage in commercial activities. However, since
experience had shown that not all flag States had been equally
vigilant in carrying out their regulatory duties, his country
would support all efforts to introduce supplementary measures
in that regard. The principal aim of the Conference with re-
spect to the protection of the marine environment should be to
minimize the risk of intentional or accidental pollution of the
seas and thus eliminate as far as possible the need for measures
to deal with pollution once it had happened. An obligation
might therefore be created on the part of the flag State to deny
ships which did not comply with international regulations con-
cerning construction, equipment and operation the right to fly
its flag, and to make the flag State liable for marine pollution
incidents caused by ships to which it had issued certificates
incorrectly attesting compliance with the regulations. To sup-
plement those obligations, there might be established, along

the lines of the 1969 International Convention on Civil Lia-
bility for Oil Pollution Damage, a right of the port and coastal
States to deny entry to their ports and passage through their
coastal waters to ships which could not produce certificates.
62. Where substantial marine pollution had taken place,
coastal States could also be authorized, as under the 1969
International Convention relating to Intervention on the High
Seas in Cases of Oil Pollution Casualties, to carry out prelimi-
nary investigations in parts of the high seas adjacent to territo-
rial waters on ships encountered near the site of the pollution
incident. However, there was no need to accord coastal States
exclusive investigatory powers within a certain delimited area
of the sea. On the contrary, the creation of such powers not
limited to particular areas would facilitate investigation and
provide an incentive for the setting up of co-operative inspec-
tion systems on a regional or bilateral basis. In addition, such
regulatory powers could be supplemented by granting the in-
vestigating coastal State prosecutory powers in cases where,
although violations had been established, the flag State had
failed to prosecute.
63. The question of ocean dumping, in his delegation's view,
constituted a far greater hazard to the marine environment
than vessel-source pollution, and much more extensive rights
could therefore be accorded to the coastal States with regard to
the control of authorized dumping and the prosecution of illicit
dumping activities. For those reasons the Federal Republic of
Germany was ready in principle to accord the coastal States
effective powers regarding on-the-spot detection of violations
of international dumping regulations.

The meeting rose at 1 p. m.


	Main Menu
	List of Documents
	How to use List of Documents

	Master File
	How to use Master File

	Other Materials
	I. Preface
	II. Document Symbols
	III. Full-text Search
	IV. Tables
	A. GA Resolutions
	B. Conference Sessions
	C. Documents by Session
	D. Contents by Volume
	E. Negotiating Texts
	F. Chronology - LOS



	Main: 


